
Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

Date Tuesday 19 March 2019
Time 10.00 am
Venue Council Chamber - County Hall, Durham

Business

Part A

1. Apologies for Absence  
2. Substitute Members  
3. Declarations of Interest (if any)  
4. Minutes of the Meetings held on 13 November 2018, 22 January 2019 

and 5 February 2019  (Pages 3 - 26)
5. Application for the Variation of a Premises Licence - The Pickled 

Parsons, 1-2 The Square, Sedgefield  (Pages 27 - 94)
6. Application for the Variation of a Premises Licence - MRH Stonebridge, 

Stonebridge Service Station, Durham  (Pages 95 - 144)
7. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 

is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  

Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham

11 March 2019

To: The Members of the Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

Councillors P Atkinson, J Blakey, C Carr, J Maitland and M Wilson

Contact: Jill Errington Tel: 03000 269703



This page is intentionally left blank



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee held in Committee Room 2 - 
County Hall, Durham on Tuesday 13 November 2018 at 10.00 am

Present:

Councillor C Carr (Chairman)

Members of the Committee:
Councillors D Bell, D Brown and C Hampson

Also Present:
S Grigor – Council’s Solicitor
K Robson – Senior Licensing Officer
Mr A Singh - Applicant
Mrs B Kaur – Applicant’s Wife
Mr S Edwards – Representing the Applicant
PCSO A Guest – Durham Constabulary
Mr S Drabik – Durham Constabulary

1 Apologies 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor P Atkinson.

2 Substitute Members 

There were no substitute members in attendance.

3 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

4 Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 24 September 2018 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman.

5 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence - Shergill Stores, 24 Front 
Street, Sherburn Village, Co Durham 

Members: Councillors C Carr (Chairman), D Brown and C Hampson

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



The Committee considered the report of the Corporate Director, Regeneration and 
Local Services regarding an application for the grant of a premises licence in 
respect of Shergill Stores, Sherburn Village (for copy of report, see file of minutes).

A copy of the application and location plan had been circulated together with copies 
of the representations received and responses from responsible authorities.

The Durham Local Safeguarding Children Board mediated with the applicant and 
agreed additional conditions, a copy of which had been circulated.

The Senior Licensing Officer presented the report and advised Members that 10 
letters of representations were received, 3 were from residents in support of the 
application and the remaining 7 letters were received from Durham Constabulary, 
Councillors and residents opposing to the application.

A response not amounting to a representation was also received from Durham 
County Council Planning Department which had been forwarded to the applicant.

Responses were received from Durham County Council Environmental Health 
Department and County Durham Fire Authority confirming that they had no 
comments to make in relation to the application.

PCSO A Guest on behalf of Durham Constabulary indicated that they were 
objecting to the application on the grounds that the proposal could create a public 
nuisance. Mr S Drabik from the Alcohol Harm reduction Unit would outline the 
reasons for their objection.

Mr S Drabik indicated that Durham Constabulary were concerned of the location of 
the proposed off licence which was on the retail edge of the village. He referred to 
the location plan on page 11 and that most of the retail units were located across 
the road with one other retail unit next door to the proposed premises.

Durham Constabulary were concerned that the change of use would attract more 
people to the premises and the nature of the premises was going to be a booze 
cabin which offered cheap alcohol. There were already 2 off licences in the village 
and to draw business to the new premises they would probably offer discounted 
alcohol. If alcohol was sold cheap this would draw people into the village from other 
areas. He referred to the issues at Sedgefield where large groups of youths were 
roaming the streets which creates the fear of crime. There was already plenty of 
provision in the village with 2 off licences and they were of the opinion it would not 
be viable so would offer discounted alcohol. Parking was also a concern, there was 
parking on the main street but they were concerned if people parked outside the 
premises this would create an inconvenience and potential enforcement issues.

The Chairman stated that their concern was parking and youths.

Mr Drabik responded that there were terraced houses next to the premises and the 
premises licence would affect the amenity of those residents and the village.

Page 4



The Chairman asked if they had difficulty with youths from other premises. Mr 
Drabik responded that they did not have any issues at the moment but they were 
concerned if alcohol was discounted it would attract people who would not normally 
shop in the village.

The Chairman then asked if anyone had contacted the police raising concerns and 
if they had issues with youths in other premises. Mr Drabik responded that 
residents had made representations and they supported their objections. They did 
not have any issues with current premises as the retailers were doing their job 
correctly and they had a grip on anti-social behaviour.

The Chairman then referred to parking and that a number of accidents had already 
taken place on the junction. Mr Drabik responded that this was not an issue at 
present as bollards had been erected and a keep clear sign was in place but there 
must have been a case for these measures to be put into place. They were 
concerned that a change of use of the premises would generate more footfall which 
was necessary to run the business but was not appropriate for the village.

In response to a question on the concerns of the location, Mr Drabik indicated that 
they were concerned of the location and the nature of the business, there was 
already 2 off licences in the village and a large Tesco store a short drive away and 
would query the need for another off licence in the village.

The Chairman referred to the potential difficulty with parking.

PCSO Guest responded that the area is all double yellow lines but an increase in 
footfall there could potentially be more illegal parking and more enforcement 
required and an increase in complaints.

Councillor Brown commented that parking was not a police concern. Mr Drabik 
responded that parking was a local authority issues but the police were often the 
first point of contact. A busy retail unit in the location was going to make a 
difference to parking and would be an issue. He did not know if there was a local 
demand for another off licence and if alcohol was sold at discounted prices this 
would attract people form surrounding areas and could cause issues and why they 
had raised an objection.

Councillor Brown commented that he had only heard concerns and not any facts. 
Mr Drabik responded that their objections were based on experience from other 
places and referred to the issues on Claypath.

The Chairman stated that their concern was a busy off licence where the road does 
not facilitate parking. PCSO Guest commented that the premises were on a busy 
roundabout and how could they enforce this.

Mr Edwards, speaking on behalf of the Applicant referred to the parking issues 
which Mr Singh was aware of and stated that there was a bakers next door where 
vehicles stopped every day and they had two designated parking bays to the front 
of the premises. The bakers closed at 4.30 pm and there was a village centre with a 
car park opposite which closed at 5.00 pm, so parking was available. There was no 

Page 5



evidence of accidents due to parking outside the bakery and the photographs of the 
damaged vehicle circulated with the papers, there was no evidence that it was 
connected with the bakery. 

The premises was previously a chiropodist where a lot of people walked to and they 
hoped this would also happen with their unit and stated that they would do 
everything they could to ensure there was no illegal parking outside the unit. A lot of 
what has been said is on assumption but they did not intend to sell discounted 
alcohol and would be a specialist wine shop.

Mr Edwards then presented the Applicants case and indicated that they recognised 
they had made a mistake in calling the premises ‘Booze Cabin’ and was why they 
had changed the name and their intention was to have a high class retail unit with a 
range of wine and spirits and continental beers and snacks, which would be a 
bigger range than anyone in the village. The Co-op had not objected to the 
application nor had Environmental Health and they hoped that they had satisfied 
the fears of Durham Constabulary. The adjoining neighbour had also not raised any 
objections who would have had a reason to object. 

He went on to say that Mr Singh had held a licence since 2003 and had not had a 
single blemish on his licence and he had been cooperative in every way. His child 
attended the local school and he was involved with community activities and there 
was nothing that would have a detrimental impact. They intended to have a friendly 
operation with no disturbances, Mr Singh has worked hard and not caused any 
waves or detrimental activity. Mr Singh was not looking to sell cheap alcohol just 
make a living. He had worked in Durham since the 1980’s and had seen a lot of 
retailers come and go and property relies on people like Mr Singh taking a chance, 
without shops being occupied in villages and shopping centres premises decay and 
this property was an empty premises which was to starting to go to rack and ruin. 
The premises would make a contribution to the village and Mr Singh would do 
everything in his power to comply with regulations.

The Chairman sought clarification if the premises were owned or leased and if they 
had improved the frontage and the rear of the shop. He also asked how often they 
intended to train staff and who would carry out the training.

Mr Singh confirmed that he owned the premises and improvements had been 
made. They would provide training every month and the system in store would flash 
up to remind staff of the challenge 25. They currently have four shops at different 
locations and they have never failed a test purchase. He and his wife would carry 
out the training as they had 10 years’ experience and were qualified.

Mr Edwards commented that there would be every day training but official training 
would be delivered monthly.

The Chairman stated that usually an external trainer would be used initially which 
would be followed up with refresher training.

The Chairman then indicated that the preference would be for an incident book so 
that all incidents could be recorded and not just refusals. He then referred to the 

Page 6



cost of alcohol and how they did not intend to offer cheap alcohol but to be able to 
be competitive, he did not know how this could be achieved.

Mr Singh responded by referring to a shop he had in Washington where they 
offered wine from all over Europe, America and Asia and how there was a market 
for these wines as they are not sold in general stores and are sold in specialist 
shops.

The Chairman asked what the percentage of alcohol would be sold and if they 
intended to sell newspapers along with sweets and snacks.

Mr Singh responded that it would be 50% alcohol and the remainder would be 
snacks and sweets. They did not intend to sell newspapers and him and his wife 
would be in the shop with two permanent staff and they would close at 9.30 pm. Mr 
Singh provided details of the hours the staff would work.

Mr Singh then referred to the parking and indicated that there was a dropped kerb 
to the front of the premises with two parking spaces, he showed Members 
photographs of the parking available on his mobile.

The Chairman referred to advice from planning on page 39 of the report and asked 
if they applied for a formal change of use of the property.

Mr Singh responded that they had already made a planning application for the 
change of use and they had spoken to the conservation team in relation to the 
shutters, they would also install CCTV equipment and place a sign outside asking 
customers not to block the access.

The Chairman asked if there were sufficient CCTV cameras to cover the whole 
layout of the premises.

Mr Singh responded that there were initially going to install 4 CCTV cameras but 
this had been increased to 8, some of which would be external. Mr Edwards stated 
that if they could not install external shutters then they would have internal shutters.

Mr Drabik indicated that Durham Constabulary were not objecting to Mr Singh it 
was an off licence at that location.

The Senior Licencing Officer confirmed that a representation had been received 
from the adjoining property but was received after the consultation period, so was 
not part of the papers.

In summing up, Mr Drabik stated that he appreciated what had been said in relation 
to parking but this was an issue on a main road through a village and an off licence 
in this location was a concern.

Mr Edwards stated that the adjoining unit was a busy bakers, this property had 
been a retail unit in the past, they understood the concerns of Durham 
Constabulary but they were not going to add to the traffic which already existed and 
they would do their best to ensure the premises would not cause any problems.

Page 7



At 10.55 am the Sub-Committee Resolved to retire to deliberate the application in 
private.

After re-convening at 11.10 am the Chair delivered the Sub-Committee’s decision. 
In reaching their decision the Sub-Committee had considered the report of the 
Senior Licensing Officer and the verbal and written representation of Durham 
Constabulary and the written representation of Other Persons. Members had also 
taken into account the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Section 182 
Guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

Resolved: 

That the Premises Licence be granted as follows: 

Premises Licensable Activities Days & Hours

Supply of Alcohol (consumption 
off the premises

Monday to Saturday: 11:00 to 21:30 hrs
Sunday: 12:00 to 20:30 hrs

Opening Hours Monday to Saturday: 11:00 to 21:30 hrs
Sunday: 12:00 to 20:30 hrs

That the following mandatory conditions be imposed upon the licence:

(i) There is an Incident Book used at the premises, which includes a 
refusals register where if a sale of alcohol is refused if a person 
appears intoxicated or appears to be under 18. The Incident Book is 
to be made available to the police on request.

(ii) The initial training of staff to be organised through an external provider 
and ongoing refresher training to take place every month at the 
premises by the Licence Holder. Staff should be trained to include the 
risk from proxy sales. Training records for staff to be maintained and 
refresher training to be provided annually.

(iii) Eight CCTV cameras to be installed at the property, one at the rear of 
the premises and one at the front of the premises.

(iv) A Challenge 25 age verification policy is operated at the premises.

(v) The applicant will work with the police to minimise the risk of proxy 
provision/proxy sales.

The Sub-Committee would like to make the following recommendations to the 
applicant.

Page 8



(vi) Advise customers who park in a dangerous position outside the 
premises that they should move their vehicle to prevent any 
obstruction to the highway.

(vii) Advise that the applicant should install shutters at the property and 
work with the planning team to ensure that these should comply with 
conservation rules.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee held in Council Chamber - County 
Hall, Durham on Tuesday 22 January 2019 at 10.00 am

Present:

Councillor L Marshall (Chair)

Members of the Committee:
Councillors L Brown, D Hicks and L Kennedy

Also Present:
H Johnson – Licensing Team Leader
S Grigor – Solicitor, DCC
Bells Fish and Chips
Mr T Robson – Licensing Consultant
Cllr A Hopgood – Supporter
Bar 33
Mr M Foster – Applicant’s Solicitor
Mr J Wyatt – Director of 33 Durham Ltd
Mr M Hughes – Director of 33 Durham Ltd
 

1 Apologies for Absence 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor J Blakey.

2 Substitute Members 

There were no substitute Members.

3 Declarations of Interest 

Councillor L Brown declared an interest in the application for the variation of a 
Premises Licence in respect of Bar 33. The Councillor was a member of Durham 
Parish Council who had made representation on the application which was then 
withdrawn.  The Councillor left the meeting when the application was considered. 

4 Minutes 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 20 and 27 November 2018 and 4 December 
2018 were agreed as a correct record and were signed by the Chair. 

Page 11



5 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence - Bells Fish and Chips, 
Finchale Road, Durham 

Members: Councillors L Marshall (Chair), L Brown and D Hicks

The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration and 
Local Services regarding an application for the grant of a Premises Licence in 
respect of Bells Fish and Chips, Finchale Road, Durham (for copy see file of 
Minutes).

A copy of the application and supporting documentation had been circulated to 
Members. The Licensing Team Leader informed Members that both the applicant 
and his Agent were unable to attend the hearing and had asked Mr T Robson, 
Licensing Consultant to make representations in their absence. Councillor A 
Hopgood was in attendance as a witness in support of the application. Other person 
Mr Christison was not in attendance.

Since the application was submitted the applicant had removed late night 
refreshment and had reduced the hours for the sale of alcohol. The Applicant 
proposed additional conditions to alleviate the concerns of residents and had 
mediated with Durham Constabulary. 

Mr T Robson was invited to address the Sub-Committee. He apologised on behalf 
of J Gillead and Mr Kennedy for their unexpected absence. Mr Robson advised that 
the premises was a fish and chip shop which would serve alcohol when food was 
provided. The Applicant had taken on board the concerns of residents and had 
modified the application accordingly.

There were a number of other licensed premises in the locality with a terminal hour 
of 11.00pm. The premises bordered a residential area but was located in a small 
industrial site and was formerly a garage. He believed that sufficient measures had 
been put in place to uphold the licensing objectives. The Applicant owned other 
premises in the Durham area providing a high quality product which was a good 
indication of how this premises would be managed. Mr Kennedy was dedicated and 
professional.

The application was for on-sales only and alcohol would be served with food. He 
acknowledged that there had been issues regarding the site notices which had 
been taken on board. He hoped that the Sub-Committee would consider the 
application favourably; the reduced hours would ensure that the licensing objectives 
would not be undermined in Finchale Road or in the locality.  

In response to a question from Councillor Brown, the Member was advised that 
there was parking at the rear of the premises. There were spaces for in excess of 
26 cars in total with at least 10 spaces to the front.     

Councillor Hopgood was invited to make representation as a witness in support of 
the Applicant. The Member advised that she had initially objected to the application 
as the hours requested were beyond those of other licensed premises in the area. 
The Applicant had been willing to reduce the hours for the sale of alcohol and the 

Page 12



opening hours from midnight to 21.00 and 22.00 hours respectively. Alcohol could 
not be sold for consumption off the premises. The Applicant intended to sell small 
individual bottles of wine would be sold to complement the food.

Councillor Hicks asked if a delivery service was offered, and was informed that the 
premises offered takeaway food for collection only.

At 10.15am the Sub-Committee Resolved to retire to deliberate the application in 
private. 

After re-convening at 10.20am the Chair delivered the Sub-Committee’s decision.  
In reaching their decision the Sub-Committee had taken into account the report of 
the Licensing Team Leader, which included amendments to the application and 
proposed additional conditions, the written representations of Mr Christison, and the 
verbal representations of Mr Robson and witness on behalf of the Applicant. 
Members had also taken into account the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
and Section 182 Guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

Resolved:

That the Premises Licence be granted with the following conditions:

- Alcohol will only be available with a table meal

- A rubbish bin will be located outside of the premises (this will be emptied 
and washed out daily-as is practice at other sites)

- Staff will carry out regular checks and clear away any rubbish in the 
vicinity of the premises during opening times and just prior to closing

-  There will not be any tables or chairs outside

- The terminal hour for closing will be 10pm, with the intention to close at 
9pm each evening

- Late night refreshment has been removed

- The sale of alcohol will cease at 9pm

Councillor L Brown left the meeting.

6 Application for the Variation of a Premises Licence - Bar 33, First Floor, 29-33 
Neville Street, Durham 

Members: Councillor L Marshall (Chair), D Hicks and L Kennedy.

The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration and 
Local Services regarding an application for the variation of a Premises Licence in 

Page 13



respect of Bar 33, First Floor, 29-33 Neville Street, Durham (for copy see file of 
Minutes).  

A copy of the application and supporting documentation had been circulated to 
members, together with representations from Mr McKeon, other person.

In presenting the report the Licensing Team Leader advised that the comments 
from the Planning Authority should be disregarded as they related to a separate 
business on a different floor in the building.

Mr Foster of Mincoff’s Solicitors was invited to address the Sub-Committee on 
behalf of 33 Durham Ltd. He commenced by explaining that the additional 
information provided background to the premises and the management structure. 
The location plan showed the proximity of Mr McKeon’s home to the premises 
which was at the opposite end of Neville Street. 

The information also included details of TENs for Sunday evenings over a 3 month 
period, showing that the hours requested had already been tested.  Mr Foster 
referred Members to photographs of the premises included in the additional 
information. The premises did not look like a bar, having an industrial theme.  This 
was a small quirky bar, with buzzer entry. The menus provided showed that the 
premises specialised in cocktails which could take 5 minutes to make; this was not 
a bar where customers consumed drinks quickly. Their aim was to provide an 
experience for discerning clientele. 

The Applicant had liaised with the Police and Environmental Health since June 
2018 and had agreed a number of conditions. Police had suggested piloting the 
hours proposed on Sundays using TENs, which they had done without problem. 
There were no objections from the Police or other Responsible Authorities. Mr 
Foster referred Members to paragraph 9.12 of Section 182 Guidance which stated 
‘The police should usually be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters 
relating to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective’. The Guidance 
suggested that other Responsible Authorities should be viewed in the same light.

Mr Foster stated that Mr McKeon’s home was at the opposite end of Neville Street and 
there was no clear line of sight between the two properties.

The bar already operated every day until 2am except Sunday without problem. Late 
night refreshment was requested to provide tea and coffee, not food. 

Mr Foster then asked questions of Director Mr Wyatt who explained that the venue was 
very relaxed and could be described as an experience rather than a venue for people 
to consume a lot of alcohol in a short space of time. This was a small venue providing a 
calm environment; the music was never above conversation levels. It could only 
accommodate a small number of people and this created a relaxed atmosphere which 
was different to other premises in Durham.

During the application process the issue of noise had been raised as the premises had 
previously operated as a music venue, when sound boards and a noise limiter had 
been required. With the agreement of the Police and Environmental Health these 

Page 14



requirements were removed from the Premises Licence. They had retained the noise 
limiter but it was not needed.

The Directors had met with Councillor Liz Brown and one other Councillor from Durham 
Parish Council on site to discuss concerns the Councillors had raised on behalf of local 
residents. The Councillors’ concerns were allayed at that meeting and the Parish 
Council withdrew their objections.

The company had received no complaints either from Environmental Health or directly 
from local residents regarding their operation of the premises.   

All parties were invited to ask questions of the Applicant. Mr McKeon asked about 
the removal of the sound boards and noise limiter and was advised that this had 
been proposed by the Police and Environmental Health because they were not 
relevant to their business style. These conditions had been imposed on the 
previous licence holders because of problems with noise. Mr McKeon then asked if 
this meant that music could be played at any level which was of concern as the 
business may change its operations or sell the premises. Mr Wyatt assured the 
resident that they were responsible operators and did not intend to play loud music.

Councillor Marshall reminded Mr McKeon that the application was to consider an 
application to vary the existing Premises Licence to include their licensable 
activities on Sundays.

Mr McKeon asked what time the premises would be cleared of customers and was 
advised that the supply of alcohol ceased at 02.00 hours with 30 minutes drinking 
up time. The premises would close at 02.30 hours.

Following a further question from Mr McKeon regarding CCTV coverage, given that 
ownership of the premises was split, Mr Wyatt confirmed that the premises 
complied with the Premises Licence and Bar 33 had its own CCTV system.

Following a further question with regard to Framework Licensing Hours in the 
Council’s own Licensing Policy, the Licensing Team Leader clarified that the hours 
for premises licences authorising the sale or supply of alcohol on or off the 
premises were 07.00 to midnight Sunday-Thursday and 07.00 to 01.00 Fridays and 
Saturdays. Local policy was in place in the City Centre for premises wishing to 
operate beyond the Framework Hours but the hours could not be extended beyond 
02.00.

Mr McKeon made representation and said that he had lived in the City Centre for 40 
years. He worked closely with the Police with regard to problems as standards 
across premises in the City had slipped. An absence of objections from students did 
not mean that there was no public nuisance; he had knocked on all doors in the 
area and had the names of students who were concerned. He pointed out however 
that in fairness their concerns did not relate to Bar 33. He was also concerned that 
when customers left the premises they congregated around the takeaway, although 
there was no evidence that the customers were from Bar 33. Sunday was the only 
evening where the hours of operation ceased before 02.00, and from a residents 
point of view this application, if granted, would interfere with their one quiet night.

Page 15



Mr Wyatt stated that the company had taken all reasonable steps to minimise 
disturbance. There was no evidence to suggest that residents were disturbed on 
any other evening, and therefore no evidence to suggest that the extra night would 
be any different.  This was borne out by the TENs.

Following a general comment by Mr McKeon about enforcement where premises 
caused problems, the Licensing Team Leader advised that Licensing Enforcement 
made regular inspections in the City, and there was no evidence of anti-social 
behaviour or complaints associated with these premises. Any complaints would be 
acted upon.

All parties were invited to make a closing statement.

Mr Foster concluded by referring Members to the provisions of the Licensing Act 
2003 which stated that relevant representations should be about the likely effect on 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. Mr McKeon had made general 
representations which did not relate specifically to Bar 33 and were therefore not 
relevant. There was no evidence presented by Mr McKeon that the proposals would 
adversely impact upon the licensing objectives.  

Referring to the Thwaites case he advised that to refuse the application would 
require speculation by the Sub-Committee. The case had established that ‘real 
evidence’ must be presented to support imposing additional conditions. The 
Applicant was asking for an extension to the hours of operation on a Sunday, in line 
with current operations for the rest of the week. There were no problems with the 
management of this venue and there should be no need to impose additional 
conditions.  

At 11.20am the Sub-Committee Resolved to retire to deliberate the application in 
private. After re-convening at 11.30am the Chair delivered the Sub-Committee’s 
decision. In reaching their decision the Sub-Committee had taken into account the 
report of the Licensing Team Leader, additional information provided by the 
Applicant, the written and verbal representations of Mr McKeon, and the responses 
of Responsible Authorities.  Members had also taken into account the Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy and Section 182 Guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State. 

Resolved:

That the Premises Licence be varied as follows:

Supply of Alcohol  (on sales 
only)

Sunday 12.00 hrs-02.00hrs

Late night refreshment Sunday 23.00hrs-02.00hrs
Live music (indoors) Sunday 12.00hrs-23.00hrs
Films Indoors and Recorded 
Music Indoors

Sunday 12.00hrs-02.00hrs

Opening hours Sunday 12.00hrs-02.30hrs

Page 16



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee held in Council Chamber, 
Spennymoor - Council Offices, Spennymoor on Tuesday 5 February 2019 at 10.00 am

Present:

Councillor P Crathorne (Chair)

Members of the Committee:
Councillors P Atkinson and L Brown

Also Present:
Councillor D Brown
Yvonne Raine – Senior Licensing Officer
Catherine Hazell – Solicitor (DCC)
Laura Cloney – Licensing Enforcement Team Leader
Stephen Mooney – Force Solicitor
Sgt Caroline Dickenson
DC Dean Haythornthwaite
Mark Bryden – Immigration Officer
Mark Thorley – Immigration Officer
Mrs Khan – other person
Chris Morrison – legal representative for Lebaneat
Ahmed Sayed – Lebaneat
Oana Cotoi - Lebaneat

1 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor C Carr, J Maitland and M 
Wilson.

2 Substitute Members 

Councillor Crathorne substituted for Councillor Carr and Councillor L Brown 
substituted for Councillor Maitland.

3 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

Page 17



4 Minutes 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2018 were agreed as a correct 
record and were signed by the Chair.

With the agreement of all parties items numbered 5, 6, 7 and 8 on the Agenda were 
considered together.

5 Lebaneat, 47 North Bailey, Durham and Lebaneat Wrap House, First Floor, 69 
Claypath, Durham 

The Sub-Committee considered the following reports of the Senior Licensing 
Officer:

Application for the Review of a Premises Licence – Lebaneat, 47 North Bailey, 
Durham
Application for the Review of a Premises Licence – Lebaneat Wrap House, First 
Floor, 69 Claypath, Durham
Application to Transfer a Premises Licence – Lebaneat Wrap House, First Floor, 69 
Claypath, Durham
Application to Vary Premises Licence to specify an individual as Designated 
Premises Supervisor – Lebaneat Wrap House, First Floor, 69 Claypath, Durham  

Members were informed that since the reports had been published additional 
information had been received from the Licence Holder which related to all four 
applications.

The Licence Holder’s representative had also presented a statement from Mr Abd 
El Hamid in connection with the application for the transfer of the Premises Licence 
at Lebaneat Wrap House.

Mr Mooney, Force Solicitor on behalf of the Applicants for the review applications, 
and objectors in respect of the applications to transfer the Premises Licence and to 
vary the DPS, was invited to address the Sub-Committee. 

Mr Mooney explained that the Police concerns mainly related to the employment of 
persons disqualified to work in the UK. He referred Members to the visit to both 
premises on 2 August 2018 when Home Office Immigration Enforcement Officers 
encountered two people suspected of working illegally. Details of the visit were 
included in the Bundle of Evidence. The Licence Holder Mr Sayed had been issued 
with referral notices and fined, although he understood that Mr Sayed may appeal.

This was a very serious matter; Section 182 Guidance prescribed certain criminal 
activity which should be treated particularly seriously, including the  employment of 
a person disqualified from working by reason of their immigration status in the UK, 
which the Guidance expected that revocation should be seriously considered. This 
company was making a profit and Mr Sayed held a privileged position. The people 
he was employing were being used, and paid very little or nothing at all. One of the 
male’s found working during the visit now had permission to work in the UK but this 
post-dated 2 August 2018.  At the time of the visit the male had no documentation 

Page 18



and Mr Sayed had said that he was working on a trial shift but the Police believed 
that this was an attempt to bypass rules. The male had attempted to hide his chef’s 
clothing and was prevented from answering when asked if he was getting paid for 
his work. The staff were told to stay quiet rather than assist the Officers during the 
visit. Mr Sayed had said that his staff were employed by an Agency Sayed Trading 
Ltd which he had nothing to do with but this was not the case. Referring to the 
meeting with the Police on 29 November 2018 Mr Sayed had challenged the view 
that this was a serious matter. If this was Mr Sayed’s view, Mr Mooney asked how 
often this had occurred in the past. 

Turning to the sale of alcohol at the Wrap House it had been established that the 
premises did not hold a Premises Licence between 2016 and 2018. Mr Sayed had 
said that licensable activities were not taking place at the premises but Mr Mooney 
referred Members to the statement of PCSO Carey which confirmed that alcohol 
was on display and this was demonstrated with photographs of the bar area.  Mr 
Sayed had said that he had thought that customers could bring their own alcohol 
and had used the off-sales from the restaurant as a means of attempting to bypass 
the licensing regime.   

The Police believed that Mr Sayed had made applications to transfer the Premises 
Licence and to vary the DPS with interim effect as a means of stretching the 
licensing legislation. It was difficult to work with an operator who looked for 
loopholes in the law

In conclusion the Police considered that the applications to transfer the Premises 
Licence and to vary the DPS in respect of Lebaneat Wrap House should be 
rejected and the Premises Licences for both the Wrap House and Restaurant 
should be revoked. The other options available to the Sub-Committee would have 
little effect as there had been such clear disregard of the licensing law. 

All parties were invited to ask questions of the Police. The Licence Holder’s 
representative, Mr Morrison, asked a number of questions of Sgt Dickenson.

Sgt Dickenson confirmed that the social media posts that did not refer to the Wrap 
House could not be relied upon.

In terms of any crime and disorder relating to the premises, Sgt Dickenson 
confirmed that there had been no reports relating to either the Restaurant or the 
Wrap House. She was unable to comment about incidents at other premises in the 
City without access to the Police system. There were around 300 licensed premises 
in the City, the majority of which did not cause problems, although acknowledged 
that there were incidents of drunk and disorderly behaviour, and a number of 
premises had lost their licences due to this.

Referring to the visits to the premises, Sgt Dickenson confirmed that the licensing 
conditions that had not been met during the visit in November 2018 were being 
adhered to at the visit made on 3 January 2019. She confirmed that this included 
the CCTV which at the visit on 16 November 2018 was being kept for 14 days, 
instead of the 28 days required by the licensing conditions.
   

Page 19



At this point the Chair requested a short adjournment to allow Members to read the 
additional information provided by the Licence Holder.

Upon re-convening, Mr Morrison asked Sgt Dickenson about the retainer 
agreement and staff handbook included in the additional bundle. The Sgt advised 
that the handbook post-dated the issues that had given rise to the applications. She 
confirmed that she would expect all premises to have a staff handbook, and that 
their employees were entitled to work in the UK with the correct documentation. The 
policies had only recently been introduced and not seen in operation. 

The Chair of the Sub-Committee stated that these questions related to the 
documents produced by the Licence Holder, and not evidence contained in Sgt 
Dickenson’s statement.

Mr Morrison then asked questions of DC Haythornthwaite regarding issues between 
the owner of the neighbouring premises and Mr Sayed. The Sub-Committee 
advised that these matters should be dealt with in Mr Morrison’s representations. 

Mark Bryden and Mark Thorley, Immigration Officers were invited to address the 
Sub-Committee. After briefly outlining their responsibilities, Mr Byden stated that the 
role of the Premises Licence Holder should not be underestimated which came with 
a statutory obligation to fulfil the licensing objectives. Mr Bryden addressed the 
Sub-Committee regarding the visit of 2 August 2018 as detailed in their statements 
contained in the Bundle of Evidence, and confirmed that Mr Sayed had been fined 
for employing workers not entitled to work in the UK. Mr Sayed had claimed that all 
staff details were held at the company’s Head Office in Beirut. 

Two previous visits had been made to the premises in 2016. On 1 April 2016, 
Officers had encountered an Egyptian male working illegally and during a second 
visit on 3 November 2016 three males were apprehended, one being the Egyptian 
male found on the earlier visit. This was despite Mr Sayed being advised of his 
requirements following 1 April 2016. The other two workers had permission to work 
in the UK. The Premises Licence Holder was not robust and did not take the 
licensing objectives seriously. During the visit in August 2018 Mr Sayed had 
obstructed Officers who were trying to carry out their duties. Employing illegal 
workers encouraged people to take risks to enter the UK dangerously and left them 
vulnerable. It also had an impact on the wages of legal workers and led to 
exploitation of working conditions. Employers were required to carry out simple 
checks on the documentation provided by employees, and to carry out repeat 
checks.

Councillor L Brown asked what advice Mr Sayed had been given following the visit 
on 1 April 2016 and was advised that he had been informed of the rules regarding 
relevant checks and where to find them. Action had been considered following the 
visits in 2016 but Officers had felt that there was not enough evidence to apply a 
fine at that time.

Mr Bryden responded to questions from Mr Morrison. He advised that he expected 
a robust Premises Licence Holder to conduct checks on anyone they employed to 
ensure they had the correct documentation to work in the UK and to check when 

Page 20



visas were due to expire.  With regard to appropriate documentation he advised 
that a NI number was not proof of identity or of a right to work. Some illegal workers 
did hold NI numbers; over-stayers could retain their NI number but would not have 
a right to work. Guidance was available on-line and right to work checks could also 
be carried out directly with the Home Office. Mr Morrison asked if a safeguard 
against exploitation of workers would be a robust internal employment procedure 
and Mr Bryden confirmed that such a document would be appropriate for a fit and 
proper business to have.

Laura Cloney, Licensing Enforcement Team Leader was invited to address the 
Sub-Committee and referred to the visit on 16 November 2018 when a number of 
conditions had not been complied with. CCTV footage was only held for 14 days 
instead of 28 days, there was no-one available to download footage, and there 
were no notices on display informing customers that CCTV was in operation. The 
Officer confirmed that these matters were complied with at the visit on 3 January 
2019. However Mr Sayed had not taken heed of an e-mail sent following the visit on 
2 August 2018 which stated that ‘conditions on the licence were very specific which 
could mean that they no longer meet the needs of your establishment, I would urge 
you to familiarise yourself with the Licence and the conditions to negate any 
possible breach of your responsibilities’.   

Upon questioning by Mr Morrison, the Officer confirmed that although recordings 
should have been held for 28 days, the system was working and enough Notices 
should be displayed to inform customers of the presence of CCTV. Whilst this in 
itself may not call for a revocation it did raise concerns about how Mr Sayed viewed 
his responsibilities under the Licensing Act. Mr Morrison stated that the concerns 
raised had been resolved and asked if there were any current concerns. The Officer 
explained that she could only confirm that the conditions were complied with on 3 
January 2019, and could not say if the conditions were being complied with 
presently.

Mrs Khan was then invited to address the Sub-Committee and advised that she 
was speaking on behalf of her husband Mr Khan. They had found it difficult being 
located next to the Restaurant when there were numerous immigration issues. She 
believed that Mr Sayed had had enough time to put measures in place. Mrs Khan 
asked the Sub-Committee to make a decision which sent out a direct message to 
all businesses that if illegal workers were employed action would be taken. In the 30 
years that they had operated she had never encountered this. She and her 
husband supported the application for revocation of the Premises Licence.

Mr Morrison asked Mrs Khan if she considered herself to be impartial in view of the 
complaints made against Mr Sayed and as Lebaneat was a rival business. Mrs 
Khan stated that this was not relevant and that she was present to support the 
Police review application. Mr Morrison was advised to address the matter of 
complaints made by Mrs Khan against Mr Sayed in his presentation.

Mr Morrison was invited to address the Sub-Committee and commenced by stating 
that the test was whether the business was ‘fit and proper’ and the date from which 
this should be assessed was now. He intended to demonstrate that all legitimate 

Page 21



concerns had now been addressed because of procedures and checks and 
balances put in place. 

Mr Sayed was asked by Mr Morrison to read out his witness statement which had 
been circulated to all parties with the additional information.  

After doing so, Mr Morrison asked a number of questions of Mr Sayed about the 
range of measures designed to render the business ‘fit and proper’. In response Mr 
Sayed advised that he had employed an Operations Manager Ms Oana Cotoi to put 
systems in place and to ensure they were complied with.

Referring to the starter checklist and the right to work checklist included in the 
additional information, Mr Sayed advised that potential employees were required to 
complete these documents before any trial shift or training. The Operations 
Manager ensured that this was implemented. The company advertised vacant 
positions on a specialist recruitment site and the Operations Manager checked all 
documentation before giving workers a trial. 

The Operations Manager maintained the staff records and people could not now 
turn up at the premises asking for employment without documentation. The 
Operations Manager checked each premises twice per day.

Regarding the problems with Mr and Mrs Khan, it was explained that these had 
occurred when his business partner was involved with the premises. Mr Sayed  
explained that his partner had sold his share of the business in 2016 at which time 
he struggled to control the business. His partner had dealt with all paperwork and 
he was responsible for food and customer service. 

He would have no problems with the business being monitored for a period of time 
going forward.

Upon questions from Members Mr Sayed confirmed that English was not his first 
language and that his Solicitor had drafted the statement using Mr Sayed’s own 
words.

Councillor L Brown referred to the witness statement and asked Mr Sayed to clarify 
which evidence the Police would not look at in the meeting on 29 November 2018, 
and was informed that it related to the documentation  included in the additional 
bundle of evidence.

Councillor Brown also asked why Mr Sayed had not put procedures in place 
following the visits to the premises in 2016, on the advice of Immigration Officers. 
Mr Sayed advised that at that time his business partner had left two months earlier, 
he had been in the process of opening a further branch of the business and it was 
difficult at times. It was a stressful time for him and he did not mean to break the 
law. He was looking to expand the business and provide good food. It was difficult 
to find staff familiar with Lebanese cuisine and he was trying to search for the right 
people and trialled 2 or 3 chefs every day. He now had time to do this as he had an 
Operations Manager and a Secretary. 

Page 22



In response to a question from Councillor Crathorne, Mr Sayed advised that the 
unpaid trial was for 12 hours over 2 days. He did not know why he had not paid the 
workers but that now he did. At the time the males had said that they were chefs. 
The workers were not asked for documents for a trail shift but he had now started 
doing that following advice from Immigration.

Councillor Crathorne made the point that despite this advice Mr Sayed had 
employed illegal workers in 2018 and asked if he had carried out any checks. Mr 
Sayed advised that he had taken copies of passports, and he received documents 
in relation to the second male on 16 August 2018. When Immigration had arrived at 
5pm on 2 August 2018 the premises had just opened and he had panicked.

Following a request for clarification from Mrs Hazell, Mr Sayed explained that he 
had opened Lebaneat Express in June 2016. The Restaurant had opened in 2014 
and the Wrap House in November 2016. The Operations Manager was appointed in 
September 2018.   

Following a question from Councillor L Brown, Mr Sayed advised that Lebaneat 
Express had also been visited on 2 August 2018 without problem.

Mr Mooney asked if the Licence Holder had brought copies of completed right to 
work and starter checklist forms to demonstrate that they were being completed but 
was informed by the Operations Manager that he had not.

Upon questioning by Mr Mooney, the Operations Manager Ms Cotoi confirmed that 
she had worked at Lebaneat before September 2018 and that she was present 
during the visit on 2 August 2018 but could not recall that she had told the males to 
be quiet. Mr Sayed explained that the chefs and staff had left customers unattended 
and he had told them not to panic but to carry on serving the customers. They did 
not know what was happening and they had tried to calm them to allow Officers to 
carry out the checks.

Mr Mooney asked Mr Sayed why he had said that the Agency was not his company 
and why there were different names for each company. Mr Sayed said that he had 
not meant to say that and that he had panicked. He had used a shorter name for 
one company but he did not think this was an issue and there was no particular 
reason for doing this. He confirmed that all of the companies were his own.

Upon further questioning by Mr Mooney, Mr Sayed advised that he had completed 
a Personal Licence Holder’s course on 28 September 2018 and the purpose of the 
meeting with DC Haythorntwaite was to show the Police and Licensing Authority the 
procedures he now had in place and to seek advice from the Police. Mr Sayed 
acknowledged that the Police Officer had taken the information with him following 
the meeting, however he would have appreciated being given the opportunity to 
discuss the documents with the Officer at the time.

Following a question from Sgt Dickenson, the Operations Manager advised that she 
did not hold a Personal Licence but had completed the course, which covered all 
aspects of licensing, on 31 July 2018. 

Page 23



Mr Bryden referred to the male who at the time of the visit did not have the 
necessary documentation but later produced proof of eligibility to work on 16 
August 2018. Mr Bryden asked what Mr Sayed intended to do with staff who were 
being trained but who could not be employed because they were not eligible. The 
question was not answered, and Mr Morrison said that it was a hypothetical 
question as the male was found to be eligible to work.
 
Oana Cotoi, Operations Manager, through questions from Mr Morrison explained 
her role as Operations Manager which was, in general, 50% staff 
recruitment/training and 50% developing/updating the operating procedures. In July 
2018 the Head Office Sayed Trading Ltd was opened to deal with staffing at all 
Lebaneat venues. There were three premises in a three mile radius and staff may 
be required to work across each. It was therefore sensible to have one company 
looking after staff and recruitment. People could no longer walk into the premises 
and ask for work. They used a well-known recruitment site to advertise for staff. 
Applicants were required to produce photo ID, NI number, proof of address, bank 
details, and birth certificate if born in the UK. If candidates could not present 
documents proving their entitlement to work, they would be sent away. There was 
now a whistle-blowing procedure and if an employee thought that someone was 
working illegally they could report this to Ms Cotoi.

Following the visit in November 2018 the premises were given 7 days to comply 
with conditions and this had been adhered to. Written records were now held in 
relation to staff training. Ms Cotoi confirmed that she visited the premises twice 
daily and when trials were taking place. Four people were now employed to 
undertake the tasks previously undertaken by one person. The Team ensured that 
all aspects of the business were covered and they were improving every day. Their 
jobs depended upon the company doing well. 

Following questions from Sgt Dickenson regarding the staff training record, Ms 
Cotoi advised that she had drafted the document with the Licensing Consultant. Sgt 
Dickenson noted from the record that only 13 staff were included for the Restaurant 
and 3 for the Wrap House.  This was confirmed; these were full-time employees 
whose work involved licensable activities.  Sgt Dickenson also noted that the staff 
training manual for alcohol sales stated that the fine was £80 and that the 
Magistrates could impose a fine of up to £5000. This was not now the case. The 
fine now imposed was £90 and an unlimited fine could now be imposed by the 
Magistrates.
 
Following a request for clarification from Mrs Hazell, Mr Sayed accepted that no 
licensing fee had been paid but alcohol had been served in 2017. At that time all 
licences were held under one name and he assumed that the licence for Lebaneat 
covered all premises. As soon as he became aware of the gap he had taken 
immediate steps.  

All parties were invited to make closing statements.

Mr Mooney stated that Mr Morrison had referred to ‘fit and proper’ but this was not 
the test that should be applied. The correct test was whether the licensing 
objectives were being promoted as set out in S4 and S52 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

Page 24



The review applications and objections were submitted on the grounds that Mr 
Sayed was not promoting the licensing objective of the prevention of crime and 
disorder. Mr Morrison had stated that there was no disorder at the premises, but 
this was disorder linked to crime through the employment of illegal workers. The 
Police had serious concerns about the lax approach of Mr Sayed to this very 
serious matter. Mr Sayed had bypassed rules. The Wrap House Premises Licence 
had lapsed for 2 years and this was not a gap; the argument Mr Sayed had used 
was suspect and he had accepted that alcohol had been sold. The premises had 
failed to comply with conditions and there were no degrees of compliance, the 
premises were either compliant or not. The Police had seen the procedural 
documents very late in the day and did not show how they were implemented in 
reality. Although not Operations Manager at the time of the visit on 2 August 2018, 
Ms Cotoi was employed by Mr Sayed, and had told a male not to say anything.   

Mr Sayed had said that the employment of illegal workers was not serious and this 
was an issue for the Police. He asked the Sub-Committee to reject the applications 
to transfer the Premises Licence and to vary the DPS, and to revoke both Premises 
Licences.

Mr Morrison stated that the Sub-Committee’s task was to decide whether the 
current shape of the business met the licensing objectives or not.   Mr Sayed had 
been measured entirely on the basis of past concerns but that he had not 
addressed these concerns could not be further from the truth. There were systems 
in place which addressed those issues. ‘Fit and proper’ was a relevant test which 
was bound up by a level of trust. The documentation provided was not a case of 
‘fobbing off’ but evidence of a company wanting to transition from a small business 
to a larger one. They had recruited a Durham Graduate, Ms Cotoi to enforce 
standards. Immigration had said what it would like to see from the premises and he 
suggested that all the Home Office would need was included in the material. 
Checks and balances were now in place to ensure that employees were eligible to 
work.

He urged the Sub-Committee to focus on what steps had been taken to remedy 
concerns. Mr Sayed had re-organised the business and had put in place a format 
that any responsible company would. The current systems in place met all 
requirements but Members may feel stringent measures were needed and the 
company would abide by any conditions imposed upon the Premises Licence. Mr 
Sayed wanted to improve his stock in society.

At 3.10pm the Sub-Committee Resolved to retire to deliberate the application in 
private.

After re-convening at 4.00pm the Chair delivered the Sub-Committee’s decision. In 
reaching their decision the Sub-Committee had considered the report of the Senior 
Licensing Officer and additional information submitted by the Licence Holder, and 
the verbal and written representations of those in attendance for the Applicant, 
Responsible Authorities, Other Person and the Licence Holder. Members had also 
taken into account the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Section 182 
Guidance issued by the Secretary of State. 

Page 25



Resolved:

That 

a) the application to transfer the Premises Licence at Lebaneat Wrap House be 
refused;

b) the application to vary the DPS at Lebaneat Wrap House be refused;  
c) the Premises Licence in respect of Lebaneat be revoked;
d) the Premises Licence in respect of Lebaneat Wrap House be revoked.

 

.   
 

Page 26



Page 27

Agenda Item 5



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95

Agenda Item 6



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meetings held on 13 November 2018, 22 January 2019 and 5 February 2019
	Minutes , 22/01/2019 Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee
	Minutes , 05/02/2019 Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

	5 Application for the Variation of a Premises Licence - The Pickled Parsons, 1-2 The Square, Sedgefield
	6 Application for the Variation of a Premises Licence - MRH Stonebridge, Stonebridge Service Station, Durham

